
 
 

KETCHUM URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

Tuesday, January 17, 2023 at 2:00 PM 
191 5th Street West, Ketchum, Idaho 83340 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INFORMATION 

Public information on this meeting is posted outside City Hall. 
 

We welcome you to watch Council Meetings via live stream. 
You will find this option on our website at https://www.ketchumura.org/kura/meetings. 
 
If you would like to comment on a public hearing agenda item, please select the best option 
for your participation: 
 

1. Join us via Zoom (please mute your device until called upon). 
Join the Webinar: https://ketchumidaho-org.zoom.us/j/83826547017 
Webinar ID: 838 2654 7017 
 

2. Join us at City Hall. 
 

3. Submit your comments in writing at info@ketchumura.org (by noon the day of the 
meeting). 
 

This agenda is subject to revisions.  All revisions will be underlined. 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 
ROLL CALL: 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS: 
CONSENT CALENDAR: (ALL ACTION ITEMS) 

1. ACTION: Approval of December 19, 2022 Minutes 
2. ACTION: Approval of Bills 

DISCUSSION ITEMS: 
3. Review and discussion of responses to RFP questions from the Board 
4. Legislative Update  

ACTION ITEMS: 
5. ACTION ITEM: Consideration and Adoption of Resolution 22-URA13 approving  the 

Agreement to Negotiate Exclusively 50082 for the 1st and Washington  Project  

1



 
6. ACTION ITEM:Presentation, discussion and direction to staff on options to fund public 

parking within the 1st and Washington Project. 
7. ACTION ITEM: Approval of Agreement 50083 and 50084 with Skinner Fawcett for Bond 

Counsel Services associated with the development of the property at 1st and 
Washington and potential bond financing to fund public parking.  

ADJOURNMENT: 

2



 

 

 

Meeting Minutes 

Monday, December 19, 2022,  2:00pm                      Ketchum City Hall 

CALL TO ORDER:   

Chair Susan Scovell called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. (Video 00:00:21) 

ROLL CALL:   

Present   

Chair Susan Scovell 

Vice Chair Casey Dove  

Board Member Gary Lipton  

Board Member Casey Burke 

Board Member Amanda Breen  

Board Member Tyler Davis-Jeffers (absent at roll call; joined remotely before first motion) 

Other attendees:   
Suzanne Frick, KURA Executive Director  
Jade Riley, City Administrator 
Abbey Germaine, KURA Counsel (via Zoom) 
Dennis Brown, Workman, and Company CPA’s 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: (Video 00:01:52) all action items 

1. Motion to approve November 14, 2022, minutes. (Video 00:01:50)  
Motion made by Amanda Breen; seconded by none 
Ayes: Gary Lipton, Susan Scovell, Casey Burke, Casey Dove, Tyler Davis-Jeffers,  
Amanda Breen 
Nays: None 
 

2. Motion to approve the bills as included in the package. (Video 00:02:24) 
Motion made by Amanda Breen; seconded by Casey Burke 
Ayes: Gary Lipton, Susan Scovell, Casey Burke, Casey Dove, Tyler Davis-Jeffers,  
Amanda Breen 
Nays: None 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

       3.  Update on the 1st and Washington project (Video 00:02:50) 
Presented by Suzanne Frick, Kura Executive Director 
Joined by Abbey Germaine, KURA Counsel 

3



 

 
 
 
 
 
4.   Discussion on request for City funding for 1st and Washington (video 00:06:15) 
 Board members, KURA executive director, City Administrator 
 

ACTION ITEMS: (Video 00:17:30) 

       5.   Recommendation to approve FY22 Financial Statement and Audit 

             Presented by Dennis Brown – Workman and Company CPA’s 

Motion to approve FY22 Financial Statement and Audit and direct the Executive 
Director to file the financial statement with the appropriate entities, including the 
state controller and the trustees for the agency bonds.  (Video 00:21:44)  
Motion made by Casey Burk; seconded by Susan Scovell 
Ayes: Gary Lipton, Susan Scovell, Casey Burke, Casey Dove, Tyler Davis-Jeffers,  
Amanda Breen 
Nays: None 
 

       6.   Consideration an adoption of Resolution 22-URA13 approving the agreement  

             negotiate exclusively for the 1st and Washington (Video 00:22:25) 

             - This item was continued as the agreement isn’t completed               

       7.   Adoption of Resolution 22-URA14 establishing the KURA meeting dates for 2023 

            (video 00:22:50) 

             Motion to adopt Resolution 22-URA14 establishing the meeting dates for 2023 

             with the change as noted for the URA. (Video 00:23:53) 

             Motion made by Casey Dove; seconded by Amanda Breen 

             Ayes: Gary Lipton, Susan Scovell, Casey Burke, Casey Dove, Tyler Davis-Jeffers,  

            Amanda Breen 

            Nays: None 

        

ADJOURNMENT:  

            Motion made by Amanda Breen; seconded by Casey Burke (video 00:24:11) 

             Ayes: Gary Lipton, Susan Scovell, Casey Burke, Casey Dove, Tyler Davis-Jeffers,  

            Amanda Breen 

            Nays: None 

 

 

 

4



 

 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Susan Scovell, Chair 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________________ 

Trent Donat KURA Secretary 

5



City of Ketchum Unpaid Invoice Report - kura Page:     1

Report dates: ALL-ALL Jan 10, 2023  12:08PM

Report Criteria:

Invoice Detail.GL account = "9810000000"-"9911810000"

Invoice Sequence Description Type Invoice Due Invoice Discount Net Invoice GL Account

Number Number Date Date Amount Amount Check Amount Number

5050 AGNEW BECK CONSULTING INC.

10990 1 PROFORMA TEMPLATE, RFP Q&A, R Invoice 12/15/2022 01/10/2023 2,842.50 2,842.50 98-4410-420

Total 5050 AGNEW BECK CONSULTING INC.: 2,842.50 .00 2,842.50

1650 CITY OF KETCHUM

6275 1 NOV 26 THROUGH DEC 23, 2022 SAL Invoice 01/09/2023 01/10/2023 2,492.98 2,492.98 98-4410-500

Total 1650 CITY OF KETCHUM: 2,492.98 .00 2,492.98

1702 COMMUNITY LIBRARY

AGREEMEN 1 CONTRACT #50023 KURA Invoice 01/10/2023 01/10/2023 50,000.00 50,000.00 98-4410-710

Total 1702 COMMUNITY LIBRARY: 50,000.00 .00 50,000.00

5390 KNEEBONE LLC

FINAL REIM 1 FINAL REIMUBERSEMENT Invoice 01/10/2023 01/10/2023 8,096.00 8,096.00 98-4410-710

Total 5390 KNEEBONE LLC: 8,096.00 .00 8,096.00

Total : 63,431.48 .00 63,431.48

Grand Totals: 63,431.48 .00 63,431.48

Summary by General Ledger Account Number

GL Account Number Debit Credit Net

98-4410-4200 2,842.50 .00 2,842.50

98-4410-5000 2,492.98 .00 2,492.98

98-4410-7103 8,096.00 .00 8,096.00

98-4410-7104 50,000.00 .00 50,000.00

Grand Totals: 63,431.48 .00 63,431.48

Summary by General Ledger Posting Period

GL Posting Period Debit Credit Net

00/00 63,431.48 .00 63,431.48

Grand Totals:

63,431.48 .00 63,431.48

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



             CITY OF KETCHUM
CHECK REQUEST 

Date: _____________________________________ 

Vendor:    _________________________________________ 

Vendor Mailing Address: _________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________ 

Service Provided:  

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________ 

Dollar Amount Requested: ______________________________ 

Person Requesting:  

_______________________________________________________________ 

Approved by:  

________________________________________________________________ 

GL Code: ______________________________________________________ 

A completed W-9 will need to be received by Accounts Payable prior to releasing 

a check over $600 

1/10/2023
Steven Kearns
Kneebone LLC
PO Box 4356, Ketchum Idaho, 83340

Final Reimbursement for Kneebone Project for 2021 Property Taxes

$8,096

Suzanne Frick

98-4410-7103

13



 
 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 
P.O. Box 2315 | 191 5th Street | Ketchum, ID 83340 
 
 
January 17, 2023 
 
Chair and Commissioners 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 

FOLLOW-UP INFORMATION REQUESTED BY KURA 
 
Introduction/History 
At the November 14, 2022 meeting when the Board discussed the development 
proposals for 1st and Washington, the Board asked for follow-up information.  The 
following provides information requested by the Board.   
 
Summary of Ranking Comments 
The Board requested additional detail on the rationale used by the internal team to rank 
the proposals. Attachment A provides comments by the internal team when ranking the 
proposals.  
 
Property Tax Contribution 
Staff contacted Jim Williams, the Blaine County Assessor to gather information and 
clarity on the question about assessment of property taxes for the improvements and 
the property.  
 
The 1st and Washington property is owned by KURA, a public agency.  As such, it is not 
currently subject to property taxes. The property will continue to be owned by the KURA 
and therefore the property itself will not be subject to property taxes once it is 
developed. Properties and improvements owned by non-profit organizations 
established through IRS regulations, are also exempt from property taxes. To gain this 
exemption, the non-profit must file for the exemption annually with the Blaine County 
Assessor. The Assessor reviews the request to determine if the non-profit still owns the 
property/improvements and qualifies for the exemption. The Assessor’s determination 
is confirmed by the County Commissioners.  
 
Two of the three proposals, WRCHT/deChase and Servitas, proposed non-profit entities 
as the owner of the property improvements. Should the non-profit entity continue to 
own the improvements and qualify for the non-profit exemption, no property taxes 

14



would be assessed.  The third proposal, Blueline Development, proposed a traditional 
financing and operating model that did not include a non-profit entity.  In that case, 
property taxes would be assessed.   
 
The assessment of property taxes did not factor into the rankings of the proposals.  
Rather, the ability of the development team to deliver a successful project meeting the 
KURA objectives was the key rating factor.  The waiver of property taxes may be 
financially necessary in order to develop and maintain long-term deed restricted 
housing.   
 
If there are any additional questions, staff would be happy to provide further 
information.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



DEVELOPMENT TEAM

Available 
Points

Bonus Points 
Available

Total Points 
Available

WRCHT/deChase 
MiksisTotal Points

Servitas  Total 
Points

Blueline  Total 
Points

Minimum Requirements: Comprehensive development team with all areas of 
expertise. Acceptable legal entity structure. 

50

Preferred Outcome: Development team with some or all members based in the 
Wood River Valley

50

Relevant experience of team members for proposed project. Demonstrated expertise 
developing mixed-income housing in urban settings, designing high performance 
buildings, producing contextually appropriate projects with high-quality results, 
innovation of complex parking systems, and strong communication skills in a public 
setting. Excellent references from previous project partners. 

100 100 97 58 67

Minimum Requirements: Minimum of 35 housing units; balanced mix unit types 
(studio, 1 bd, and 2bd); achieves target income category percentages 

125

Preferred Outcomes: More units offered at the lower price points and longer-term 
pricing restrictions. Ground floor ADA accessible units. Increase minimum housing 
units.

50

Minimum Requirements: includes both public and private parking. One level of 
underground parking                                                                                                     

100

Preferred Outcomes: minimum of 1 space per residential unit, two levels of 
underground parking

50

Minimum Requirements: Pedestrian oriented design at ground floor level along all 
street frontages

25

Visionary Outcomes: Integrates unique and noteworthy architectural features. 
Innovative use of space that engages community members with memorable 
experiences. Public art installations. 

50

Minimum Expectations: Meets design review criteria and no requested variances 
from zoning regulations

75

Visionary Outcomes: Integrates unique and noteworthy architectural features. 
Innovative use of space that engages community members with memorable 
experiences. Public art installations. 

50

Minimum Expectations: NGBS or LEED Silver, or equivalent 25

Visionary Outcomes: Rooftop solar and other sustainable building systems above and 
beyond efficient fixtures and appliances 

50

TOTAL POINTS 800 664 469 460

75

111

20

77

54 21

96

155

116

57

89

PORTFOLIO AND RESUME

AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE/COMMUNITY HOUSING

100

175

64

118

WRCHT/deChase: Local owner/operator/manager along with local 
development and design team. Understand the issues developing 
in the Wood River Valley. Proposed a comprehensive local team 
with experience in workforce and mixed income housing, and 
sustainable construction.
Servitas:  Texas development team, out of area architect and 
contractor, design consultant in Ketchum, Civil Engineer in Hailey. 
Experience with design/build/ lease back to owner, different type 
of development model. Primary experience with student housing 
projects.
Blueline:  Montana development team, Ketchum Landscape 
Architect and Civil Engineer in Hailey. Primary experience in low-
income tax credit housing projects, limited experience with mixed 
income projects. 

WRCHT/deChase: No variances or exceptions required. Building 
design appears monolithic, mass needs to be broken down. 
Adjustments to occur during design review. Architect with 
experience going through Ketchum design review. 
Servitas: No variances or exceptions required. Building mass is 
articulated, street frontage design and activation lacking. High 
walls to private courtyard with little interface with public spaces.
Blueline: No variances or exceptions required. Building design is 
bulky, needs mass broken up. 

150

75

125

SUSTAINABILITY/GREEN BUILDING

WRCHT/deChase: Proposes sustainability consultant as part of the 
development team to ensure a sustainable and energy efficient 
project. No unique measures proposed without additional 
funding.
Servitas: Proposal does not clearly state commitment to or path 
to achieve sustainable design. Proposal provides some mention of 
green building design.
Blueline: Proposal does not provide any information on 
sustainability or this rating issue.

Comments

0

49

96

123

41

84

WRCHT/deChase: Development Team has experience with 
development in Ketchum, Boise and with public parking 
component. Comprehensive team proposed with relevant 
experience(see above).
Servitas: Limited experience with mixed income projects. 
Financing model assumes master lease by KURA or other entity to 
off-set debt. Concerns with proposed project financing structure, 
may not be feasible in Idaho. 
Blueline: Not clear on extent of development team. Limited 
experience with mixed income workforce housing.  Primarily a low 
income tax credit housing developer. Project construction costs 
appear low in comparison to construction costs in Ketchum.  
Concern the project may not be financially feasible.

WRCHT/deChase: Achieves all project objectives. Proposed 63-66 
units, mix of income levels 32% of the units at 100% AMI, 30% of 
units at 120% AMI and 39% of units at 155% AMI. Maximum AMI 
is lowest of all the proposals. Unit sizes need to be evaluated, 67% 
of the units are studios. 3,400 sf of ground floor retail proposed.
Servitas: Proposes 64 units, balanced mix of unit sizes, 36 studios, 
21-1 bedroom and 7 two bedroom units.  Higher income levels, 
30% of units at 100% AMI, 30% of units at 120% AMI, 40% of units 
are at or above 210% AMI. No retail or activated use on ground 
floor, project fitness center proposed on ground floor.
Blueline: Proposes fewer units, 41 total units with 71% of the 
units 1-bedroom, 20% 2-bedroom and 10% 3-bedroom. Income 
levels are higher with 27% of the units at 100% AMI, 29% of the 
units at 150% AMI, and 41% of the units at 200% AMI. Leasing 
office, clubroom and commercial space proposed on ground floor.

PARKING

WRCHT/deChase: Proposes 2 main parking options.  Each option 
provides between 20-44 dedicated residential parking spaces.  
Below grade public parking an option with KURA funding of $9m 
for a total of 71 public spaces.
Servitas: Proposes total of 68 shared parking spaces, no dedicated 
residential parking. KURA contribution for parking $14-$18m. 
KURA cannot fund parking dedicated to residential use.
Blueline: Proposes total of 64 parking spaces, 27 dedicated to 
residential use and 36 underground for public use. No KURA 
contribution requested.  Cost estimated for underground parking 
appears very low, cost does not align with local construction costs. 
Concern the parking cost is too low to achieve success. 

GROUND FLOOR PEDESTRIAN ORIENTATION

WRCHT/deChase: Ground floor retail proposed, corner retail 
elements with outdoor seating and breezeways. Responded well 
to activated ground floor.
Servitas:  No ground floor retail proposed, project fitness center 
proposed.  Ground floor design does not activate the street. 
Blueline: Ground floor commercial proposed along with leasing 
office and clubhouse. No unique elements proposed.

URBAN DEVELOPMENT AND ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN

16



RESOLUTION NO. 22-URA13 - 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 22-URA13 
 

 
BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
KETCHUM, IDAHO: 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF KETCHUM, APPROVING AN 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY BETWEEN THE URBAN 
RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF KETCHUM AND THE WOOD 
RIVER COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST INC. AND deCHASE 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES, LLC; AND AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR AND 
SECRETARY, RESPECTIVELY TO EXECUTE AND ATTEST SAID 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
CONDITIONS; AUTHORIZING THE CHAIR AND SECRETARY TO EXECUTE 
ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS REQUIRED TO IMPLEMENT THE 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY AND TO MAKE ANY 
NECESSARY TECHNICAL CHANGES TO THE AGREEMENT TO 
NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

THIS RESOLUTION is made on the date hereinafter set forth by the Urban Renewal 
Agency of Ketchum, Idaho, an independent public body, corporate and politic, authorized under 
the authority of the Idaho Urban Renewal Law of 1965, as amended, Chapter 20, Title 50, Idaho 
Code, and the Local Economic Development Act, as amended and supplemented, Chapter 29, 
Title 50, Idaho Code (collectively, the “Act”), as a duly created and functioning urban renewal 
agency for Ketchum, Idaho (hereinafter referred to as the “Agency”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the city of Ketchum (the “City”) by adoption of 
Ordinance No. 992 on November 15, 2006, duly adopted the Ketchum Urban Renewal Plan (the 
“2006 Plan”) to be administered by the Agency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, upon the approval of Ordinance No. 1077 adopted by the City Council on 
November 15, 2010, and deemed effective on November 24, 2010, the Agency began 
implementation of the amended Ketchum Urban Renewal Plan (the “2010 Plan”); and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to achieve the objectives of the 2010 Plan, the Agency is authorized 
to acquire real property for the revitalization of areas within the 2010 Plan boundaries; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency owns certain real property addressed as 211 E. 1st Avenue, 
Ketchum (Parcel RPK00000190070), and real property unaddressed as Lot 5, Block 19 (Parcel 
RPK0000019005B) and Lot 6, Block 19 (Parcel RPK0000019006B) (the “Site”); and, 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Idaho Code § 50-2011, Disposal of Property in Urban 
Renewal Area, the Agency issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) on May 26, 2022, seeking to 
initiate a redevelopment project to revitalize the 2010 Plan boundary area in compliance with the 
2010 Plan through redevelopment of the Site which could also serve as a catalyst for 

17



RESOLUTION NO. 22-URA13 - 2 

redevelopment of other properties in the vicinity; and, 
 

WHEREAS, following the publication of the RFP in the Idaho Mountain Express 
newspaper on May 26, 2022, the Agency received three (3) proposals for development of the 
Site by the August 26, 2022, deadline; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency Board appointed a review group to join Agency staff in 
analyzing the proposals, conducting interviews with each development team, and providing 
findings of fact and comments to Agency staff sufficient for the Agency Board  to make a selection 
of the proposals; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the review group along with Agency staff did interview each development 
team and thereafter provided the preliminary recommendation of the Wood River Community 
Housing Trust Inc. (“WRCHT”) and deChase Miksis Development, otherwise known as deChase 
Development Services, LLC, or such successors and assigns (collectively referred to as 
“Developer”), for selection; and  
 

WHEREAS, at its regular public meeting of November 14, 2022, pursuant to Resolution 
No. 22-URA11, the Agency Board discussed the proposals and thereafter met with consensus 
regarding the proposed recommendation for development of the Site and selected Developer to 
begin negotiations; and 
 

WHEREAS, Agency and Developer intend to pursue the negotiations of a Disposition 
and Development Agreement (“DDA”) and Ground Lease and, therefore, comply with the 
required provisions related to disposition of property by the Agency as set forth in the Law; and 
 

WHEREAS, Agency seeks to enter into an agreement with Developer for the purpose of 
analyzing and assessing a development opportunity for the Site; and  
 

WHEREAS, Agency and Developer have prepared an Agreement to Negotiate 
Exclusively (the “Agreement”) between Agency and Developer, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein as if set out in full; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Agency find it in the best public interest 
to approve the Agreement and authorize the Chair and Secretary to execute and attest the 
Agreement, subject to certain conditions, and to execute all necessary documents to implement 
the transaction, subject to the conditions set forth below.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS OF THE KETCHUM URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
KETCHUM, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2: That the Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A, is hereby incorporated 
herein and made a part hereof by reference and is hereby approved and accepted as to form 

18



RESOLUTION NO. 22-URA13 - 3 

recognizing technical changes or corrections which may be required prior to execution of the 
Agreement.  
 

Section 3: That the Chair of the Agency is hereby authorized to sign and enter into 
the Agreement and, further, is hereby authorized to execute all necessary documents required to 
implement the actions contemplated by the Agreement, subject to representations by the Agency 
staff and legal counsel that all conditions precedent to and any necessary technical changes to the 
Agreement are consistent with the provisions of the Agreement and the comments and discussion 
received at the January 17, 2023, Agency Board meeting, including any necessary substantive 
changes discussed and approved at the Agency Board meeting.  
 

Section 4: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 
adoption and approval. 
 

PASSED by the Urban Renewal Agency of Ketchum, Idaho, on January 17, 2023. Signed 
by the Chair of the Board of Commissioners and attested by the Secretary to the Board of 
Commissioners, on January 17, 2023.  
 
     URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF KETCHUM 
 
 
     By__________________________________ 

Susan Scovell, Chair 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By __________________________________________ 

Secretary 
 
4886-2487-6355, v. 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

19



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 1 
 
 

 
 

AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY 
by and between  

THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF THE CITY OF KETCHUM 
and  

WOOD RIVER COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST, INC. and DECHASE 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES LLC 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY (this “Agreement”) is 
entered into by and between the Urban Renewal Agency of the city of Ketchum, also known as 
the Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency, an independent public body, corporate and politic 
(“Agency”), organized pursuant to the Idaho Urban Renewal Law, title 50, chapter 20, Idaho 
Code, as amended (the “Law”), and undertaking projects under the authority of the Law and 
the Local Economic Development Act, title 50, chapter 29, Idaho Code, as amended (the 
“Act”), and Wood River Community Housing Trust, Inc. an Idaho nonprofit corporation 
(“Trust”) and deChase Development Services LLC, an Oregon limited liability company that 
is authorized to do business in Idaho (“deChase”) (with Trust and deChase herein collectively 
referred to as “Developer”), or its assigns as provided for herein, collectively referred to as the 
“Parties” and each individually as “Party,” on the terms and provisions set forth below. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, Agency, an independent public body, corporate and politic, is an urban 
renewal agency created by and existing under the authority of the Law and the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the city of Ketchum (the “City”), by adoption of 
Ordinance No. 992 on November 15, 2006, duly adopted the Ketchum Urban Renewal Plan 
(the “2006 Plan”) to be administered by the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon the approval of Ordinance No. 1077 adopted by the City Council on 

November 15, 2010, and deemed effective on November 24, 2010, the Agency began 
implementation of the Ketchum Urban Renewal Plan 2010 (the “2010 Plan”); and  

 
WHEREAS, the 2010 Plan established the Revenue Allocation Area (the “Project 

Area”), which established an area for redevelopment and anticipated improvement projects; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to achieve the objectives of the 2010 Plan, the Agency is 
authorized to acquire real property for the revitalization of areas within the 2010 Plan 
boundaries; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency owns certain real property addressed as 211 E. 1st Avenue, 

Ketchum (Parcel RPK00000190070), and real property unaddressed as Lot 5, Block 19 
(Parcel RPK0000019005B) and Lot 6, Block 19 (Parcel RPK0000019006B) (the “Site”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Idaho Code § 50-2011 Disposal of Property in 

Urban Renewal Area, the Agency issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) on May 26, 2022, 

20



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 2 
 
 

seeking to initiate a redevelopment project to revitalize the 2010 Plan Project Area in 
compliance with the 2010 Plan through redevelopment of the Site which could also serve as 
a catalyst for redevelopment of other properties in the vicinity; and 

 
WHEREAS, following the publication of the RFP in the Idaho Mountain Express 

newspaper on May 26, 2022, the Agency received three (3) proposals for development of 
the Site by the August 26, 2022, deadline; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency Board appointed a review group (“Review Group”) to join 

Agency staff in analyzing the proposals, conducting interviews with each development team, 
and providing findings of fact and comments to Agency staff sufficient for the Agency Board 
to make a selection of the proposals; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Review Group along with Agency staff reviewed the proposals, 

interviewed each development team and thereafter provided findings of fact and comments 
to Agency staff which allowed the Review Group to prepare a ranking of the proposals for 
Agency Board consideration; and  

 
 WHEREAS, Agency staff ranked the proposals from Developer, Blueline 
Development, and Servitas. Developer originally submitted its proposal under the entity names 
Wood River Community Housing Trust and deChase Miksis Development. deChase Miksis 
Development is otherwise referred to and registered as deChase Development Services LLC. 
For purposes of this Agreement, Developer shall include deChase Miksis Development, 
otherwise known as deChase Development Services LLC ; and  
 
 WHEREAS, at a public meeting on November 14, 2022, the Agency Board discussed 
the proposals and thereafter met with consensus regarding the proposals and selected the 
“Developer’s Proposal” (as further defined below); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Developer’s Proposal contemplates development of a four-story housing 
project, with street level parking, and retail on the first floor located on the Site as illustrated 
and shown in Exhibit A; and   
 
 WHEREAS, Agency and Developer intend to pursue the negotiations of a disposition 
and development agreement and long-term ground lease for the Site, and thus, comply with 
the required notice provisions concerning the disposition of property by Agency as set forth 
in the Law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Agency seeks to enter into this Agreement with Developer for the 
purpose of analyzing and assessing development opportunities for the Site.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, Agency and Developer hereby agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 000 DEFINITIONS 
 
 “Affordable Workforce Housing Project” means the income-restricted residential 
dwelling units and associated common areas, amenities, and related parking, prioritized for 

21



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 3 
 
 

individuals and families living or working in the Ketchum area, to be developed by Developer 
on the Site pursuant to the Ground Lease and the DDA, and as further described within the 
definitions included in the Request for Proposals and Developer’s Proposal found in the 
attached Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference. 
  

“Agency” shall be the Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency and includes Agency staff.
  

“Agency Board” shall be the members of the Agency’s Board of Commissioners, as 
duly and legally appointed. 
 
 “AMI” shall mean the then current “Area Median Income” adjusted by family size 
annually published by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) for the 
geographic area referred to as Ketchum, Idaho HUD Metro Statistical Area Rent (MSA) Area 
(or its successor index).  
 
 “deChase” will be deChase Development Services, LLC, an Oregon limited liability 
company, or its assigns. 
 

“Developer” will be Trust and deChase, or their assigns. See Section 401 for the nature 
of Developer. 

 
 “Disposition and Development Agreement” or “DDA” shall mean the agreement the 
parties intend to negotiate that will set forth the definitive terms of the development of Site by 
the Developer and the disposition of the property by the Agency through a long-term ground 
lease agreement.  
 

“Effective Date” shall be the date this Agreement is signed by both Parties (last date 
signed). 

 
“Garage” means the parking structure to be developed on the Site, as described in 

Section 809. 
 
“Project Parking” means the surface parking lot to be used as parking for the 

residents/users of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project, and not for the general public. 
 
“Public Parking” means the parking Garage to be used as parking for the general 

public, as set forth in Section 809. 
 
“Ground Lease” shall mean the mechanism by which the Agency will lease the Site to 

the Developer for a period of years, allowing the Developer to construct the Affordable 
Workforce Housing Project as contemplated.  
 

“Negotiation Period” shall begin on the Effective Date and end one hundred eighty 
(180) days after the Effective Date, unless extended by the Agency as provided herein. 
 

“Schedule of Performance” shall mean the attached Exhibit C. 
 
“Scope of Development” shall mean Developer’s preliminary concepts for 

development of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project included in Developer’s Proposal 

22



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 4 
 
 

and attached as Exhibit B, which preliminary concepts will be subject to certain updates and 
changes negotiated by Developer and Agency during the course of this Agreement, the DDA 
and the Ground Lease.  

 
“Site” shall mean the real property more particularly described in Exhibit A, attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 
“Trust” will be Wood River Community Housing Trust, Inc., an Idaho nonprofit 

corporation, or its assigns. 
 
Section 100 NEGOTIATIONS 
 
 Section 101 Good-Faith Exclusive Negotiations 
 
 The Parties agree the foregoing recitals are not mere recitations but are covenants of the 
Parties, binding upon them as may be appropriate and a portion of the consideration for the 
agreements contained herein. 
 
 Agency and Developer agree for the Negotiation Period (described below) to negotiate 
diligently and in good faith to prepare the DDA and the Ground Lease to be considered for 
execution between Agency and Developer, in the manner set forth herein, with respect to the 
development of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project located on the Site. During the 
Negotiation Period, Agency shall not directly or indirectly negotiate with any person or entity 
other than Developer with respect to the disposition or development of the Site.   
 
 Section 102 Negotiation Period 
 
 The Negotiation Period shall commence on the Effective Date and shall terminate one 
hundred eighty (180) days thereafter (the “Termination Date”). Provided, Agency may in its 
discretion extend the Negotiation Period for the DDA and/or the Ground Lease for an additional 
sixty (60) days beyond the Termination Date without payment by Developer. In the event that 
Developer requests an extension of Negotiation Period and Agency grants such request, 
Agency may, in its sole discretion, require Developer to pay an extension fee of $5,000.00  
pursuant to this Agreement. In the event an extension fee has been paid and the DDA and/or 
the Ground Lease has been executed by both Parties, such extension fee shall be credited back 
to the Developer. 
 

If upon expiration of the Negotiation Period, Developer has not executed a mutually 
approved DDA and/or Ground Lease with Agency, then this Agreement shall terminate, unless 
extended in writing by Agency. Once a DDA and/or Ground Lease is signed by both Developer 
and Agency, then the terms of the DDA and/or Ground Lease shall prevail and this Agreement 
shall automatically terminate as to that DDA and/or Ground Lease.  
 
 If the negotiations do not result in an executed DDA and/or Ground Lease for the Site, 
Developer shall submit to Agency copies of the documents in its possession regarding the 
proposed development for the Site, excluding any confidential or privileged information. If this 
Agreement is terminated per this Section 102, Developer shall not seek reimbursement for costs 
and expenses from Agency and Agency shall not seek reimbursement for costs and expenses 

23



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 5 
 
 

from Developer except that Agency shall retain any extension fee paid by Developer, and 
Agency shall be entitled to retain the Deposit as provided in Section 103. 
 
 Section 103 Deposit 
 
 Developer’s Submission of Deposit:  
 

Recognizing that Trust is a not-for-profit corporation that is recognized as a 501(c)(3) 
public charity, Developer shall submit to Agency a deposit in an amount of $10,000.00 
(“Deposit”) in the form of cash or cashier’s check to ensure that Developer will proceed 
diligently and in good faith to negotiate and perform all of Developer’s obligations under this 
Agreement. Provided, if the Parties terminate this Agreement before Agency incurs any costs 
in preparing the Reuse Appraisal (defined below) for the Site, as applicable, the Deposit shall 
be refunded in its entirety to Developer. Should Agency incur the costs of a Reuse Appraisal 
for the Site and this Agreement is subsequently terminated or a DDA and/or Ground Lease is 
not executed, Agency shall retain the cost of the Reuse Appraisal from the refunded Deposit 
amount. The Deposit shall be refunded in its entirety to the Developer should the DDA and/or 
Ground Lease be successfully negotiated and executed. 

 
Submission of the Deposit must occur within fifteen (15) days of the Effective Date. If 

Developer fails to submit said Deposit within the fifteen (15) day period, Agency may terminate 
this Agreement, with neither Party having any further rights against nor liability to the other 
under this Agreement, unless as agreed to in writing by Agency. 
 

Agency shall be under no obligation to pay or earn interest on Developer’s Deposit, but 
if interest shall accrue or be payable thereon, such interest (when received by Agency) shall 
become part of the applicable Deposit and applied as described hereunder. 
 
Section 200 DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 
 
 Section 201 Scope of Development 
 
 Agency and Developer acknowledge Developer’s proposal as submitted to Agency on 
or before August 24, 2022, with supplemental information provided on October 17, 2022, 
attached as Exhibit B (collectively, “Developer’s Proposal”). In addition to Developer’s 
Proposal, on November 14, 2022, the Agency Board identified several issues requiring further 
negotiation, which issues are identified in Section 800. Agency agrees to provide Developer 
with a list, if any, of those issues within thirty (30) days following the effective date of this 
Agreement. 
 

The Parties further acknowledge the design of the Affordable Workforce Housing 
Project will be further refined in connection with the development of a specific design plan 
(“Design Development Plan”), which design refinement will occur pursuant to the terms of the 
DDA.  

 
 Section 202 Progress Reports 
 

Developer agrees to make oral and/or written progress reports advising Agency on all 
matters and all studies being made by Developer  on a monthly basis at the request of Agency. 

24



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 6 
 
 

 
 Section 203 Assessment of Project Feasibility; Notification 
 

In the event at any time during the Negotiation Period Developer determines that it is 
not feasible to proceed with development of all or a portion of the Affordable Workforce 
Housing Project, this Agreement shall be terminated upon ten (10) days' written notice to the 
Agency. In the event the Agreement is terminated before Agency incurs any costs in preparing 
the Reuse Appraisal (defined below) for the Site, the Deposit shall be refunded in its entirety 
to Developer. After Agency incurs any third-party costs in preparing the Reuse Appraisal for 
the Site, as applicable, such costs shall be deducted from the amount of the Deposit to be 
refunded to Developer (if any).  
 

In the event of such termination, neither Party shall have any further rights against or 
liability to the other under this Agreement with respect to the Site. Developer acknowledges 
and consents that in the event this Agreement is terminated, Agency has the right and authority 
to enter into an exclusive right to negotiation agreement concerning the Site with any other 
interested developer. 
 

Agency recognizes that the feasibility of the Project as proposed in Developer’s 
Proposal is predicated upon the construction costs for the Project and interest rate for the Project 
financing remaining within the targets identified in Developer’s Proposal. Agency further 
recognizes that construction costs and interest rates are dynamic variables that will fluctuate 
over time, and that the fluctuations may affect the feasibility of the Project.   

 
Agency recognizes that the feasibility of the Project as proposed in Developer’s 

Proposal is predicated upon Developer receiving City approvals that are consistent therewith, 
and that do not impose financial or other conditions or burden beyond the conditions or burdens 
that are typically imposed on similar projects in similar jurisdictions.   

 
Agency recognizes that if construction costs, interest rates, City approvals or other 

matters affect the feasibility of the Project, then Developer will need to seek to modify the 
Project design and other features (such as unit mix and affordability levels) as necessary for the 
Project to become feasible. Agency and Developer agree to work together cooperatively to 
solve problems and adapt the Project to allow a feasible Project to be developed. However, 
should Developer’s proposed modifications differ in such a way that Developer’s Proposal is 
materially altered, Agency shall have the discretion to find that such modification is 
unacceptable. In the event the Agency and Developer are unable to reach an agreement on such 
modifications, Developer will either continue with Developer’s Proposal or Agency and 
Developer will cease negotiations of a DDA and Ground Lease.  
 
 Section 204 Environmental Condition 
 
 Within thirty (30) days of the submission of the Deposit by Developer, Agency agrees 
to provide Developer with any environmental reports Agency possesses which may have 
included an investigation of the Site.  
 
Section 300 GROUND LEASE AND/OR OTHER CONSIDERATIONS  
 

25



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 7 
 
 

 During the Negotiation Period, Agency and Developer shall negotiate the schedule and 
conditions for Ground Lease of the Site with respect to financing and a schedule for the 
development of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project which schedule, and conditions will 
be included in the DDA.  
 
 Under the Law, Agency may transfer real property for no less than the fair reuse value. 
The reuse appraisal (“Reuse Appraisal”) and its determination of value will be prepared and 
provided to Developer under the DDA as the information necessary to complete the Reuse 
Appraisal may not be available at the expiration of the Negotiation Period. The Reuse Appraisal 
shall establish the fair reuse value of the Site to be leased by the Agency as required under the 
Law (the “Residual Land Value”).  
 

Developer shall submit to Agency the data required by the appraiser (“Reuse Appraiser”) 
who has been selected by Agency, which data (“Reuse Appraisal Data”) is needed by the Reuse 
Appraiser to prepare the Reuse Appraisal for the Affordable Workforce Housing Project. 
Developer shall submit the Reuse Appraisal Data pursuant to the terms of the DDA. Developer 
may be required to supplement the Reuse Appraisal Data during the course of the Reuse 
Appraisal and shall submit this supplementary data in a timely manner as required by the Reuse 
Appraiser and Agency. The Reuse Appraisal Data includes but may not be limited to: 

• density of development,  

• costs expected to be incurred and revenues expected to be realized in the 
course of developing and leasing of the Agency owned parcels,  

• residential unit types,  

• commercial unit types 

• sizes and expected rents,  

• construction type and materials, 

• exterior and interior finish materials, 

• square footages of uses other than residential,  

• leasing for other uses and assets such as office space, retail space and parking 
spaces,  

• parking stalls and usage 

• assumptions regarding soft costs such as marketing and insurance, risks of 
Agency, risks of Developer,  

• Developer participation in the funding of public facilities and amenities, and  

• estimated or actual Developer return including assumptions regarding 
entrepreneurial incentive, overhead and administration as these factors apply 
to the Project.  

26



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 8 
 
 

Developer acknowledges that Agency will be unable to commence the Reuse Appraisal 
process without Developer’s submittal of the Reuse Appraisal Data, and Developer 
acknowledges that Agency will be unable to close under the terms of the DDA without the 
results of the Reuse Appraisal for the applicable property.  

 
Agency recognizes that that Developer’s Proposal assumes that the Ground Lease will 

have rent of $1 per year, and that the identified rental rate is integral to achieving the affordable 
rents for residents/users of the Project. In no event will the Ground Lease rent be less than the 
Residual Land Value established by the Reuse Appraisal.  
 
Section 400 DEVELOPER AND DEVELOPER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 
 Section 401 Nature of Developer 
 
 Developer is a partnership between Trust and deChase. Wherever the term “Developer” 
is used herein, such term shall include any permitted nominee or assignee as herein provided.  
 

Developer currently anticipates that the development structure will be as follows: (a) 
deChase will establish a wholly owned subsidiary to develop and own the Affordable 
Workforce Housing Project through completion of the construction using equity provided by 
the Trust and construction financing provided and guaranteed by deChase; (b) at completion of 
construction, the Affordable Workforce Housing Project will be conveyed from deChase to a 
wholly owned subsidiary of Trust with long-term financing as outlined in Section 807; and (c) 
the Trust’s subsidiary will own and operate the Affordable Workforce Housing Project for the 
balance of the term of the Ground Lease in accordance with the terms of the Ground Lease and 
the Trust’s charitable purposes.  Agency recognizes that the foregoing structure is based on 
Developer’s current assumptions of what might be the most advantageous structure to achieve 
the financing and development of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project, and that 
Developer may modify that structure as Developer deems necessary or advantageous to achieve 
the most favorable financing and development of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project.  
By way of example, Developer may determine that it is most advantageous for the Trust to 
secure construction financing and the deChase subsidiary to serve only as a fee-for-service 
developer for the Trust’s subsidiary. Agency agrees to cooperate with Developer and not 
unreasonably withhold or delay its approval of any development structure proposed by 
Developer.  
 
 Section 402 Developer’s Principal Office and Development Team 
 

Developer’s Principal Office is located at: 
  

deChase Development Services LLC 
1199 Shoreline Drive, #290 
Boise, ID 83702 
 
Wood River Community Housing Trust, Inc. 
675 E Sun Valley Road K-1 
Ketchum, ID 83340 

 

27



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 9 
 
 

Agency and Developer acknowledge and agree that the Local Project Manager, as 
described in Section 906, shall also be a member of the Development Team. Unless otherwise 
set forth in Section 403 below, any other consultants and professionals on the Development 
Team (such as special architectural consultants, leasing agents, engineer, and contractor) will 
be selected at a later date. Agency acknowledges that Developer has preliminarily selected the 
following consultants and professionals for the Development Team: 

 
Architect Pivot North, LLC 
Civil: Benchmark Associates, P.A. 
Structural: KPFF, Inc. 
MEP: TJK Consulting Engineers, PC 
Landscape: Landwork Studio LLC 
Construction Management: Redpoint Construction Management LLC 
Contractor: Conrad Brothers of Idaho/McAlvain Construction, Inc. 
Public Outreach: SMR Development LLC 

 
Developer shall advise Agency of any changes to the Development Team.  
 
 Section 403 Full Disclosure 
 
 Developer is required to make full disclosure to Agency of its officers, key managerial 
employees, and design professionals (collectively the "Development Team") involved in the 
development of the Site. Any change during the period of this Agreement of the Development 
Team or in the controlling interest of Developer is subject to the approval of Agency, such 
approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The selected architect for the Project is 
Pivot North Architecture.  The selected general contractor is Conrad Brothers General 
Contractors of Idaho and McAlvain Construction Inc.  
 
 Any assignment or transfer of this Agreement is subject to Section 904. 
 

Section 404 Compliance with Applicable Laws 
 
Developer recognizes it will be required to comply with all applicable laws, including 

all applicable federal and state labor standards, antidiscrimination standards, affirmative action 
standards, and nondiscrimination and nonsegregation standards, laws, and regulations in 
development, rental, or lease of the Site. 
 
Section 500 AGENCY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 Section 501 Urban Renewal Plan 
 
 This Agreement and any DDA and/or Ground Lease agreed to by the Parties are subject 
to the provisions of the 2010 Plan.  
 
Section 600 REAL ESTATE COMMISSIONS 
 
 Agency shall not be liable for any real estate commission or brokerage fees arising from 
the development of the Site. Agency represents that it has engaged no broker, agency, or finder 

28



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 10 
 
 

in connection with this transaction, and Developer agrees to hold Agency harmless from any 
claim by any broker, agent, or finder retained by Developer. 
 
Section 700 EXECUTION OF THIS AGREEMENT NOT A DISPOSITION OF 
PROPERTY 
 
 By its execution of this Agreement, Agency is not committing itself to or agreeing to 
undertake: (a) disposition of land to Developer; or (b) agreement to a long term ground lease 
of land; or (c) any other acts or activities requiring the subsequent independent exercise of 
discretion by Agency, City, or any agency or department thereof; or (d) any other acts or 
activities requiring the subsequent independent exercise of discretion by any federal or state 
agency including, but not limited to, environmental clearance and historic preservation 
approval. Execution of this Agreement by Agency and Developer does not constitute a 
disposition of property by Agency. 
 
Section 800 ISSUES OF NEGOTIATION 
 
 Developer recognizes that the following items are matters Agency desires be addressed 
during the Negotiation Period, but both Parties understand that there is no present agreement 
as to the manner or degree to which any particular item can or will be included in the applicable 
DDA and/or Ground Lease or Design Development Plans. 
 
 Section 801 Design Refinement  
 
 Prior to submission of the Design Development Plan, Agency and Developer shall 
engage in design discussion to address design issues related to the Design Development Plan 
identified by Agency, which Agency desires to resolve prior to submittal of the Design 
Development Plan to Agency by Developer. Agency shall prepare a written list, if any, of the 
issues to be addressed in the Design Development Plan within thirty (30) days following the 
execution of this Agreement, and the process shall be conducted as provided in the Schedule 
of Performance.  
 
 Section 802 Agency Participation 
 
 Developer specifically acknowledges, recognizes, and consents that Agency 
participation in the Affordable Workforce Housing Project may be limited to the long-term 
Ground Lease of the Site. Agency Participation is to be negotiated as part of the DDA and the 
Ground Lease. The foregoing shall not preclude Agency and Developer from agreeing to 
Agency having an ownership interest in the Public Parking located in the Garage, 
reimbursement of public infrastructure or improvements as part of the DDA and Ground Lease 
or as separate agreements entered into by the Parties.  
 
 Developer has requested Agency participation in the amount of Two Hundred Twelve 
Thousand, Five Hundred Ninety-Seven Dollars ($212,597.00) for and which is the current 
estimated cost of relocating utilities from their current location to other locations that are 
conducive to the Affordable Workforce Housing Project subject to the final actual cost for said 
work. Agency’s participation on this requested item will be negotiated as part of the DDA.  
 
 Section 803 Impact Fees 

29



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 11 
 
 

 
 Agency acknowledges that Developer likely will be assessed impact fees by City. Such 
impact fees assessed represent a cost to the Developer and may be included within the Reuse 
Appraisal analysis as described in Section 300 of this Agreement. Provided, however, nothing 
contained herein obligates Agency to subsidize or pay any impact fees. The Agency 
acknowledges that Developer’s Proposal assumes that the City will waive the impact fees that 
would normally be assessed against the Project, and that the failure of the City to waive the 
ordinary impact fees will affect the feasibility of the Project. Developer acknowledges that 
Agency has no ability to waive impact fees and such decision is solely that of the City; provided, 
however, Agency will support Developer’s request to City to waive City impact fees, 
acknowledging that such support by Agency does not imply any financial or other contributions 
by the Agency related to such waivers.   
 
 Section 804 Community Outreach 
 
 The Parties agree that a public outreach plan will be developed and implemented as 
part of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project. Both Parties agree to coordinate and work 
together on public outreach prior to any design review application consideration by the City. 
 

Section 805 Sequencing  
 

The Parties shall address the sequencing and timing for development of several public 
and private components of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project and the related issues 
raised in the plans for financing the public portions, recognizing that the public and private 
portions may proceed on different schedules as a function of market conditions, available public 
funds, and costs, among other things. 
  

Section 806 Ground Lease  
 
The Agency and Developer anticipate entering into a fifty (50) year, long-term ground 

lease for lease of the Site to the Trust, or such successors or assigns as approved by the Agency 
which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, for development of the Affordable 
Workforce Housing Project (“Ground Lease”). The negotiations of the terms and conditions of 
the Ground Lease are to occur simultaneously with the development and negotiation of the 
DDA.  

 
Agency recognizes that, to accommodate the financing, development or use thereof, it 

may be necessary or advantageous for portions of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project, 
the Garage and/or the ground floor areas to be separate sublease parcels or condominium 
units.  The Ground Lease will allow Developer to create sublease parcels or condominium 
units in the leasehold estate in any reasonable manner. 

 
Section 807 Unit Affordability Mix and Idaho Housing and Finance Association 
 
Developer’s Proposal sets forth a preferred allocation of mixed-income units in the 

Affordable Workforce Housing Project including 32% of the residential units at or below 100% 
AMI, 30% of the residential units at or below 120% AMI, and 38% of the residential units at 
or below 150% AMI. The Agency Board at its meeting on November 14, 2022, specifically 
requested that additional negotiations occur between the Agency and Developer to establish the 

30



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 12 
 
 

unit type associated with these AMI ranges (i.e. studio, 1 br, 2 br, 3 br). Agency has not 
specifically approved the unit type mix or affordability mix. 
 

Agency acknowledges that Developer’s proposed unit type mix and affordability mix 
is based on Developer’s preliminary assumptions of what might be the most advantageous mix 
for the community. Developer intends to investigate its preliminary assumptions regarding the 
proposed unit type mix using current rental market data, and propose adjustments to reflect 
Developer’s judgment on the most advantageous unit type mix for the community.  Developer 
also intends to investigate its preliminary assumptions on the affordability mix using current 
information on the inputs affecting affordability (e.g., construction costs, interest rates, etc.) 
and availability of prospective tenants in each target income bracket, and propose adjustments 
to reflect Developer’s judgment on the most advantageous affordability mix for the community, 
and that is also feasible.  Agency agrees to cooperate and work with Developer and not 
unreasonably withhold or delay its approval of any unit type mix or affordability mix proposed 
by Developer that is consistent with Agency’s feasible goals for the Affordable Workforce 
Housing Project. However, should Developer’s proposed unit type mix or affordability mix 
differ in such a way that Developer’s Proposal is materially altered, Agency shall have the 
discretion to find that such modification is unacceptable. In the event the Agency and Developer 
are unable to reach an agreement on such modifications, Developer will either continue with 
Developer’s Proposal or Agency and Developer will cease negotiations of a DDA and Ground 
Lease.  
 

Developer has indicated its intent to issue at least two series of bonds or notes to finance 
the Affordable Workforce Housing Project. The first series would be the Series A bonds which 
Developer anticipates will represent seventy to eighty-five percent (70% - 85%) of the cost of 
the Affordable Workforce Housing Project. The Series A bonds will be issued through the 
Idaho Housing and Finance Association (“IHFA”) and will be double tax exempt. These Series 
A bonds will be secured by the Affordable Workforce Housing Project, including Developer’s 
leasehold interest in the Ground Lease, but not the Agency’s fee simple estate in the Site.  The 
Series A bonds will be subordinate to the Ground Lease. Agency agrees to enter into any 
subordination, nondisturbance and attornment agreement reasonably requested by IHFA to 
issue the Series A bonds, unrelated to the fee simple estate in the Site. The Series A bonds are 
expected to have a ten (10) year term, but the term may be adjusted to reflect then current 
market conditions for tax exempt bond financing. 

 
The second series are intended to be Series E (employer) notes issued by the owner of 

the Affordable Workforce Housing Project (i.e., the Trust’s wholly owned subsidiary) and sold 
to governmental employers and 501c3 employers. The Series E notes will be assigned to a 
specific dwelling unit in the Affordable Workhouse Housing Project. During the term of the 
Series E note, the holder thereof will have a priority right to nominate eligible persons and 
families to lease the assigned dwelling unit, subject to all applicable laws and regulations.  The 
Series E notes may be fully taxable. The Series E notes will not be secured. The Series E notes 
are expected to have a ten (10) year term, but the term may be adjusted to reflect then current 
market conditions.  

 
The Parties recognize that, depending on market conditions: (i) the bonds and notes may 

altered to achieve the most favorable financing rates and terms that may be available for the 
Affordable Workforce Housing Project; and (ii) other financing instruments may be issued to 
ensure that Affordable Workforce Housing Project is fully financed. 

31



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 13 
 
 

 
On or before May 31, 2023, Developer shall provide Agency with the timeline and 

process to obtain such financing and the specific IHFA programs utilized.  
 

The specific unit type mix, affordability mix and affordability monitoring will be further 
negotiated through approval of the DDA and Ground Lease. The Parties will work together to 
identify a monitoring agent, which may be self-reporting by the Trust or a third-party 
monitoring agent. Agency recognizes that IHFA will require monitoring and reporting for the 
Series A bonds, and Agency may accept the IHFA Series A bond monitoring and reporting 
requirements as satisfactory if they are reasonable. 

 
Section 808 Availability of City Funds 
 
Developer seeks to coordinate with City to determine the availability of funding for 

affordable and/or workforce housing projects. Developer shall provide Agency with 
information as to City funding and/or partnership opportunities as information becomes 
available.  Likewise, Agency shall provide Developer with information as to Agency funding 
and/or partnership opportunities as information becomes available 
 
 Section 809 Structured Parking 
 

Developer’s Proposal as part of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project includes 
two options for parking at the Site.  Option A consists of forty-four (44) surface stalls to be 
used exclusively by the occupants of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project. Option B adds 
a parking garage (i.e., the “Garage”) comprised of two below-grade levels of parking and a 
surface parking lot resulting in ninety-one (91) stalls of which twenty (20) are surface stalls to 
be utilized by the occupants of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project (i.e., the “Project 
Parking”) and seventy-one (71) below-grade stalls to be used as parking for the general public 
(i.e., the “Public Parking”).  

 
It is anticipated that the Agency intends to support the creation of the Public Parking 

through the direct ownership, operation and financing of the Public Parking. Considering the 
various ownership and financing structures related to the parking associated with the Site, on 
or before May 31, 2023, Developer will provide Agency with the following preliminary data: 

 
• the then current construction budget for both the Project Parking and the Public 

Parking, including specific cost allocation methodologies for soft costs and 
hard costs, and information and/or standards that support the proposed 
allocation methodologies; 

• term sheet concerning ownership structure of the Garage, including 
identification of parties with an ownership interest; 

• parking management of the Garage, including any proposed shared use (with 
the understanding that the operator of the Public Parking will be responsible for 
management of the use of the Public Parking); and 

• allocation of stalls between the Project Parking and the Public Parking. 
 
(collectively, the “Preliminary Parking Data”).  
 

32



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 14 
 
 

On or before June 30, 2023, Agency will notify Developer of Agency’s intent with 
respect to Agency providing support for Public Parking, including Agency’s plan for any 
Agency participation in the ownership, operation and financing of the Public Parking. 
 
 The DDA will include negotiated terms related to the parking for the Affordable 
Workforce Housing Project, including funding, ownership, management, and operations. 
 
 Section 810 Ground Floor Activation  
 
 Developer’s Proposal as part of the Affordable Workforce Housing Project includes an 
activated ground floor concept. The ground floor concept includes possible retail and office 
space uses, with the possibility of residential amenities as well. It is contemplated that these 
spaces on the ground floor will be sized in a matter to accommodate a flexible range of uses 
from small office space to larger restaurant space. The DDA will specify the general nature of 
this ground floor use and the specific development plan, recognizing that specific tenants and 
development details will not be available at the time the DDA is executed. 
 

Agency recognizes that Developer is investigating potential ground floor users that may 
be supportive to the community or the Affordable Workforce Housing Project, but that also 
require alterations to the current ground floor layout in Developer’s Proposal, and other aspects 
of the Site development (including the Public Parking or the Garage).  Agency agrees to work 
together cooperatively and creatively to accommodate the needs of any potential ground floor 
users that may contribute to the community or the Affordable Workforce Housing Project. 
Agency recognizes that the cooperation may include subdividing the ground floor area into a 
separate sublease parcel or condominium unit(s) to accommodate the financing, development 
or use of the ground floor area. 

 
Section 900 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 Section 901 Notices 
 
 Formal notices, demands, and communications between Agency and Developer shall 
be sufficiently given if sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt 
requested, to the principal offices of Agency and Developer as set forth below. Routine 
communication may be by first class mail, e-mail, facsimile, or telephone. 
 

Agency 
Suzanne Frick, Executive Director 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency  
P.O. Box 2315 
191 5th Street  
Ketchum, ID 83340 
(208) 727-5086  

 sfrick@ketchumidaho.org 
 
 With a copy to: 
 
 Abigail R. Germaine  
 Ryan P. Armbruster  

33



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 15 
 
 

 Elam & Burke, P.A.  
 251 E Front St, Ste. 300 
 PO Box 1539 
 Boise, ID 83701 
 (208) 343-5454 
 arg@elamburke.com 
 rpa@elamburke.com 

 
deChase 
J. Dean Papé 
deChase Miksis Development LLC  
1199 Shoreline Drive, #290 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
(208) 830-7071 (voice) 
dean@dechase.com 
 
With a copy to:  
 
Anne C. Kunkel 
Varin Thomas Corporate Services LLC 
242 North 8th Street, Suite 220 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
(208) 584-1266 (voice) 
(877) 717-1758 (fax) 
anne@varinthomas.com 
 
Wood River Community Housing Trust, Inc. 
Steven Shafran  
Woodriver Community Housing Trust  
PO Box 7840 
Ketchum, Idaho 83340 
(208) 721-2725 (voice) 
steve@wrcht.org 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Franklin G. Lee  
Givens Pursley LLP 
601 West Bannock Street 
Boise, Idaho 83702 
(208) 388-1200 
franklee@givenspursley.com 
 

 Section 902 Remedies and Damages 
 
 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, Developer's 
obligations hereunder are nonrecourse. Agency's only recourse and security for Developer's 
obligations shall be retention of the Deposit as provided herein. In the event of any legal 
proceeding described in this Section 902 between the Parties to this Agreement to enforce any 

34



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 16 
 
 

provision of this Agreement or to protect or establish any right or remedy of either Party 
hereunder, the prevailing Party shall recover its reasonable attorney fees, at trial and upon 
appeal, in addition to all other third-party costs and damages allowed, as determined by the 
Court.  
 

Section 903 No Recordation 
 
 In no event shall any Party record this Agreement, or any memorandum hereof or 
otherwise encumber the Site by reason of this Agreement or the negotiations contemplated 
hereby. 
 
 Section 904 Successors and Assigns 
 
 No Party may assign or delegate its obligations under this Agreement without the 
written consent of each other Party hereto, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the terms, covenants, conditions, and 
agreements contained herein shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs, personal 
representatives, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto. 
 
 Section 905 Counterparts 
 
 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and each counterpart shall then be 
deemed for all purposes to be an original, executed agreement with respect to the Parties whose 
signatures appear thereon. 
 

Section 906 Local Project Management 
 

Mark Edlen of Trust shall serve as Developer’s liaison and will be reasonably available 
to Agency. 

 
Section 907 Computation of Time 
 
In computing any period of time prescribed or allowed under this Agreement, the day 

of the act, event, or default from which the designated period of time begins to run shall not be 
included. The last calendar day of the period so computed shall be included, unless it is a 
Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday, in which event the period runs until the end of the next day 
which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday. As used herein, “legal holiday” means any 
holiday as defined by Idaho Code § 73-108. 

 
Section 908 Anti-Boycott Against Israel Certification. 
 
In accordance with Idaho Code § 67-2346, Developer, by entering into this Agreement, 

hereby certifies that it is not currently engaged in, or for the duration of this Agreement will 
not engage in, a boycott of goods or services from the State of Israel or territories under its 
control. 
 
Section 1000 TERMINATION 
 

Section 1001 Termination by Mutual Agreement 

35



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 17 
 
 

 
This Agreement may be terminated at any time by the written consent of the Parties. In 

the event of such termination, Deposit shall be refundable as set forth in Section 103 and neither 
Party shall have any further rights against or liability to the other under this Agreement. 
 

Section 1002 Termination Due to Inability to Agree on the DDA Terms 
 

 Upon termination of this Agreement at the expiration of the Negotiation Period, neither 
Party shall have any further rights against nor liability to the other under this Agreement. If this 
Agreement is terminated for the Parties' failure to negotiate the DDA and Ground Lease 
acceptable to both Parties, Developer shall not seek reimbursement for costs and expenses from 
Agency, and Agency shall not seek reimbursement for costs and expenses from Developer, 
except to retain all or a portion of the applicable Deposit as provided in Section 103. 
 
Exhibits 
 
Exhibit A Legal Description of Site and Map of the Site 
Exhibit B Developer’s Proposal 
Exhibit C  Schedule of Performance 
   

End of Agreement | Signatures appear on the following page.  
 
  

36



 

 
 
AGREEMENT TO NEGOTIATE EXCLUSIVELY – 1st and Washington – PAGE - 18 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the dates 
set forth below.  
 
 
 
   , 2023  AGENCY 
     THE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY OF 
     THE CITY OF KETCHUM, also known as 
     KETCHUM URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 
 
 
             
     Susan Scovell, Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
   , 2023  TRUST 
     Wood River Community Housing Trust, Inc., 
     an Idaho nonprofit corporation  
 
 
             

By:        
Name:         

 
 
 
 
   , 2023  deChase 
     deChase Development Services LLC, 
     an Oregon limited liability company 
 
 
             

By:        
Name:         

 

37



 

 
 

Exhibit A 
Legal Description of the Site and Site Map 

 
 
 
Lots 5, 6, 7 and 8 in Block 19, of the VILLAGE OF KETCHUM, as shown on the certified 
copy of the official map thereof, recorded as Instrument No. 302967, records of Blaine 
County, Idaho. 
 

 
 

38



 

 
 

Exhibit B 
Developer’s Proposal 

 
 

39



 

 
 

Exhibit C 
Schedule of Performance 

 
 
Task Completion Date Comments  Section 

Reference 
Effective Date Date Agreement signed 

by all Parties (last date 
signed) 

 000/102 

Negotiation 
Period  

Commences on the 
Effective Date and shall 
terminate one hundred 
eighty (180) days 
thereafter  
 
 

Agency may extend the 
Negotiation Period an 
additional sixty (60) days 
without payment by Developer 
 
If Developer requests 
extension, an extension fee of 
$5,000may be required.  

102 

Deposit  Within fifteen (15) days 
of the Effective Date 

$10,000  103 

Environmental 
Reports  
 

Within thirty (30) days of 
the submission of Deposit 
by Developer, Agency to 
provide any reports to 
Developer.  

 205 

Financing   Developer to provide Agency 
on or before 05/31/2023, with 
timeline and process to obtain 
bonding and utilization of 
IHFA programs.   

807 

Community 
Outreach  

  804 

Preliminary 
Parking Data 

Due to Agency by 
05/31/2023  

 809 

Reuse 
Appraisal 

Must be completed prior 
to closing on DDA  

 300 

Design 
Development 
Plan  

Developer to provide 
Design Development Plan  
 
 
 

 201 

Termination 
Date/Deadline 
for Developer 
to execute a 
mutually 
approved 
DDA 

One hundred eighty (180) 
days after the Effective 
Date. 

Unless extension provided.  102 

 
4878-2598-3040, v. 6 

40



 
 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 
P.O. Box 2315 | 191 5th Street | Ketchum, ID 83340 
 
January 17, 2023 
 
Chair and Commissioners 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 
 
REVIEW AND DIRECTION TO STAFF ON FUNDING FOR PUBLIC PARKING INCONJUNCTION WITH 

THE 1ST AND WASHINGTON PROJECT 
 
Introduction/History 
As part of the RFP issued by the KURA for development of the 1st and Washington property, the 
Board identified three project goals:   
 
Goal 1.  Provide local, affordable workforce housing downtown, particularly for professionals 

and those essential to a strong, diverse downtown economy. 
Goal 2. Provide structured public parking in anticipation of long-term downtown growth and 

development. 
Goal 3. Provide active ground floor opportunities to maintain vibrancy of downtown 
 
In order to develop structured public parking, the WRCHT/deChase proposal provided two 
options for consideration: 
 
Option 1: KURA purchases the below grade parking and places permanent financing on it, 

operates and owns the parking. 
Option B: The Housing Trust owns the below grade structure and places permanent tax-

exempt bond financing on it using the same assumptions for the housing 
financing.  KURA would master lease the parking for $563,900 which would 
equate to the bond payment. Once the bonds are paid off, the garage would be 
sold to the KURA for $1.00. 

 
Staff does not recommend Option B for the following reasons: 

• The developer’s bond repayment schedule will likely extend beyond 2030, the period 
the KURA can provide payments. 

• The cost of the developer securing debt is more expensive than if the KURA secures its 
own debt. 

 
As background, there are currently 60 public parking spaces on the site. Should public parking be 
included in the project, the WRCHT/deChase proposal identified the potential for 91 parking 

41



spaces, 20 at the surface or tucked under the building dedicated to residential use and 71 below 
grade public parking  spaces.  
 
Parking Financing 
To gain a better understand of KURA’s ability to fund public parking, Eric Heringer, with Pier 
Sandler, prepared a bond financial review (Attachment A).  That analysis will be presented at the 
Board meeting. 
 
In summary, the public parking is estimated to cost $8.4 million. KURA has debt borrowing 
capacity to support $4.5-$5.0 million based on estimated revenue. A contribution of $3.4-$3.9 
million is required to reduce the amount of debt to fully fund the proposed parking.  
 
Board Considerations  
The decision to fund and include public parking in the project must be made as soon as possible.  
This decision has significant implications for the development team. Based on the information 
prepared by Eric Heringer, the Board has several issues to consider and decide: 
 

• Should public parking be included in the project and is the Board supportive of funding 
the parking. 

• If public parking should be included in the project, how much public parking should be 
provided. As proposed, there would be two levels of underground public parking. Level 
1 would provide 34 spaces and level 2 would provide 37 spaces.  

• Should the KURA ask the City to assist with funding the parking structure to reduce the 
total amount of the required bond.  If so, what is the ideal level of city funding.   

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff is seeking direction from the Board on the inclusion and funding of public parking in the 
project.  
 
 
Attachment A:  January 17, 2023 Bond Financing Review 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



MINNEAPOLIS | ATLANTA  |  BOISE | CHICAGO | HOUSTON  |  KANSAS CITY  |  LONDON | LOS ANGELES | MEMPHIS  |  NEW YORK | OMAHA  |  PHILADELPHIA  |  PHOENIX  |  PORTLAND |   SAN FRANCISCO | SEATTLE 

January 17, 2023

Eric Heringer
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Tel: +1 208 344-8561
Email: eric.heringer@psc.com

Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency
Bond Financing Review

43



PIPER SANDLER    |    1

Opportunity

KURA is considering the financing of a parking garage for the 1st and 
Washington Redevelopment Project:

• Project costs are estimated at $8.4 million 
before construction and permanent financing 
costs.

• The project could be funded with a 
combination of KURA funds on hand and 
proceeds from a KURA revenue bond.

• KURA could pledge Tax Increment Revenue as 
security for revenue bonds issued to finance 
the project.

• The Tax Increment Revenue pledge would 
need to meet the parity requirements of the 
KURA’s Series 2021 Bond.

44



PIPER SANDLER    |    2

TIF Financing Capability Overview

KURA Tax Increment Revenue will be received through Tax Year 2030 (received calendar 2031)

FY 2021 Tax Increment Revenue totaled: $2,205,533

FY 2022 Tax Increment Revenue projected at: $1,982,000

FY 2023 Tax Increment Revenue is budged at: $2,101,905

Existing TIF Bonds: Series 2021

Amount Outstanding: $4,009,726

Interest Rate: 1.73%

Maximum Annual Debt Service: $542,506

Final Maturity: 9/15/2030

Additional Bonds Test: TIF Revenue > 1.50 of Maximum Annual Debt Service

45



PIPER SANDLER    |    3

Borrowing Capacity

The Additional Bonds Test (ABT) to issue future parity bonds is:

Prior to the issuance of the Additional Bonds, the Agency either: (a) furnishes an Accountant’s Certificate to the 
Purchaser stating that for the 12 months immediately preceding the issuance of the Additional Bonds, the available 
Revenue Allocation Revenues of the Agency were not less than 150% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service on 
Outstanding Bonds and the projected Maximum Annual Debt Service on the Additional Bonds (including any Additional 
Bonds then outstanding and the Additional Bonds to be issued), treating such Additional Bonds as then Outstanding, or 
(b) furnishes the Purchaser with a copy of a Consultant’s Report stating that the projected Revenue Allocation 
Revenues for each of the three (3) Fiscal Years following the proposed issuance of such Additional Bonds are expected 
to equal at least 150% of the Maximum Annual Debt Service on Outstanding Bonds including any Additional Bonds 

FY 2022 Increment Revenue (estimate) 1,980,000       

ABT MADS Coverage Requirement 1.5

Max Annual Debt Service allowed 1,320,000       
Less:  Series 2021 MADS (542,506)         

Available for Future Parity Bond Debt Service 777,494          

Note:  Borrowing up to the ABT “capacity” would still provide roughly 
$660,000 for annual operating costs and OPA repayment.

46



PIPER SANDLER    |    4

Borrowing Capacity - Continued

KURA parity debt borrowing capacity is estimated at between $4.5 and 
$5.0 million based on an estimate of FY 2022 increment revenue.

The project is estimated to cost $8.4 million requiring between $3.4 and 
$3.9 million of KURA funds on hand.

Term 7 8
Annual Payment 777,494          777,494           
Interest Rate 4.40% 4.50%
Parity Bond Capacity (par amount) $4,598,353 $5,128,262
Interest Cost 844,105          1,091,690        
Total Debt Service 5,442,458       6,219,952        

Issue Date Fall 2023 Fall 2023
Final Maturity 9/15/2030 9/15/2031

47



PIPER SANDLER    |    5

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

3.50%

4.00%

4.50%

5.00%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Maturities

Range of MMD (10-Year History)

Historical Range of MMD
Average
Current

Current Municipal Bond Market Conditions

48



PIPER SANDLER    |    6

Path Forward

• Decision to proceed with project

• Determine funding level and funding mix (cash vs. finance)

• Develop financing schedule (close financing by March 1)

• Determine method of sale – bank placement?

• Execute bond financing

49



PIPER SANDLER    |    7

Tax Increment Value History - Update

22% compound annual growth rate tax year 2014-2022

20222021202020192018201720162015
609,137,125410,840,413318,163,856294,895,606260,102,598210,952,668182,889,652153,676,520127,492,170

-50,000,000

50,000,000

150,000,000

250,000,000

350,000,000

450,000,000

550,000,000

650,000,000

750,000,000

Ta
xa

bl
e 

M
ar

ke
t V

al
ue

50



PIPER SANDLER    |    8

Tax Increment Levy Rate History

7.61% compound annual decline in combined tax rate 2014-2022

0.000000000

0.002000000

0.004000000

0.006000000

0.008000000

0.010000000

20222021202020192018201720162015

Le
vy

 R
at

e

Fiscal Year

Historic Property Tax Rates applicable to KURA Increment

Blaine… City of… School District No. 61(*)
Blaine County Ambulance Blaine County Recreation Ketchum Cemetary

51



PIPER SANDLER    |    9

Tax Increment Revenue History

12% compound annual growth rate over Fiscal Years (2015 – 2023).

2023 (proj)2022
(prelim)

2021
(audit)

2020
(audit)

2019
(audit)

2018
(audit)

2017
(audit)

2016
(audit)

2015
(audit)

KURA Increment Revenue
History 2,148,8171,933,5261,886,7031,772,5261,659,4161,424,4001,173,9721,041,028888,111

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

In
cr

em
en

t R
ev

en
ue

52



PIPER SANDLER    |    10

Tax Year 2022 Summary of tax rates that impact URA revenues

Tax Rates (*)
Blaine County 0.000657027 18.6%
City of Ketchum 0.000954210 27.0%
School District No. 61(1) 0.001689914 47.9%
Blaine Co. Ambulance 0.000133187 3.8%
Ketchum Cemetery 0.000007656 0.2%
Blaine Co. Recreation 0.000085647 2.4%

Total Tax Rate 0.003527641    100%

2022
TAX YEAR

* Does not include Big Wood Flood Control District which 
generates less tha $200 per year in increment revenue

(1) School District No. 61 Levy Rates include a Budget 
Stabilization Levy and a Permanent Supplemental M&O Levy 
neither of which are subject to voter approval.  Voter 
approved levies and school Emergency levies are statutorily 
prohibited from being included in the tax increment revenue 
allocation.

53



 
 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 
P.O. Box 2315 | 191 5th Street | Ketchum, ID 83340 
 
January 17, 2023 
 
Chair and Commissioners 
Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 
Ketchum, Idaho 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE AGREEMENTS 50083 AND 50084 WITH SKINNER 
FAWCETT LLP FOR BOND CONSEL SERVICES 

 
Introduction/History 
Two service agreements are proposed for Board action for Bond Counsel services 
associated with the development of the 1st and Washington property. 
 
Agreement 50083 (Attachment A), is to review and analyze the proposed development 
to ensure there are no conflicts with the Series 2021 tax exempt bonds issued by the 
KURA.  
 
Agreement 50084 (Attachment B) is to provide bond counsel services in the event the 
KURA issues debt to fund public parking.     
 
Recommendation and Motion 
Staff recommends the Board approve both agreements with the following motion: 
 
“I move approve service agreements 50083 and 50084 with Skinner Fawcett” 
 
 
 
Attachment A:   Agreement 50083 
Attachment B:  Agreement 50084 
 
 

54



_____________________ 

SKINNER FAWCETT LLP 
LAW OFFICES 

 
RICHARD A. SKINNER 250 W. BOBWHITE CT., STE 240, BOISE, IDAHO 83706 

CHARLES W. FAWCETT POST OFFICE BOX 700, BOISE, IDAHO  83701 

HENRY C. RUDOLPH TELEPHONE: (208) 345-2663 

RYAN M. FAWCETT FAX:   (208) 345-2668 

JOHN R. McDEVITT  E-MAIL: jmcdevitt@skinnerfawcett.com 

SEAN H. COSTELLO 

 

 

 January 12, 2023 
 

Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 

Attention: Commissioners/Executive Director 

P.O. Box 2315 

191 5th Street West 

Ketchum, ID 83340 

 

RE: Bond Counsel Services – Tax Review of Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency  

 Revenue Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 2021  

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

 We have been contacted in connection with a proposed affordable workforce housing project 

(the “Workforce Housing Project) to be constructed on certain real property located at the corner of 

1st Street E. and Washington Ave., Ketchum, Idaho (the “Site”), currently owned by the Ketchum 

Urban Renewal Agency (“KURA”).  

 

 On July 23, 2021, KURA issued its $4,815,958.70 Revenue Allocation Refunding Bond, 

Series 2021 (the “Series 2021 Bond”) to, in part, refinance KURA’s acquisition of the Site with tax-

exempt proceeds of the Series 2021 Bond. Relating to KURA’s issuance and delivery of the Series 

2021 Bond, KURA executed and delivered a Tax Certificate dated January 23, 2021 (the “Tax 

Certificate”), pursuant to which KURA covenants to comply with the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, as amended (the “Code”), and maintain the exclusion of interest on the Series 2021 Bond from 

gross income for federal income purposes under Section 103 of the Code.  

 

 We are prepared to furnish bond counsel services to assist KURA in remaining in compliance 

with the Tax Certificate as it takes certain actions with respect to the lease or other disposition of the 

Site to achieve the Workforce Housing Project. Our bond counsel services will include tax exempt 

analysis, consultations with KURA staff and consultants, and the rendering of final approving 

opinions. Our services will end with the closing of the Workforce Housing Project transaction. 

 

We will bill monthly for our services, beginning at least thirty (30) days from the date of 

KURA’s acceptance of this letter. I will be the responsible attorney for this matter. Other firm 

attorneys and tax counsel may assist me from time to time. The current hourly rates of the attorneys 

I anticipate will work on this matter are as follows: 

 

55



Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 

January 12, 2023 

Page -2- 

 
 

Richard A. Skinner………………… $550 per hour 

J. Ryan Boatright (Tax Counsel)……$500 per hour 

John R. McDevitt…………………..  $350 per hour 

Sean H. Costello…………………… $285 per hour 

 

 We estimate our fees for the above-described services at up to $10,500 based on our regular 

hourly rates. If any now unforeseen or unusual details and/or difficulties arise during our 

engagement, additional fees may become necessary. However, any such necessary fee adjustment 

would first be discussed and confirmed with the KURA if those potential circumstances become 

evident to us.  

 

 If these arrangements appear acceptable to KURA, please have its authorized 

representative execute the acknowledgment page below and return it to me by e-mail or regular 

mail. Thank you.  

 

 We look forward to working with you on this matter. 

 

      Very truly yours, 

 

      SKINNER FAWCETT LLP 

 

 

 

      JOHN R. MCDEVITT 

 

 * * * * * 

 

 The foregoing is hereby accepted by the Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency, Blaine 

County, Idaho, this ____ day of __________, 2023. 

 

KETCHUM URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

 

 

 

 

      By:        

       Authorized Officer 

 

 

56



____________________ 

 SKINNER FAWCETT LLP 
 LAW OFFICES 
RICHARD A. SKINNER 250 W. BOBWHITE CT., STE 240, BOISE, IDAHO 83706 

CHARLES W. FAWCETT POST OFFICE BOX 700, BOISE, IDAHO  83701 

HENRY C. RUDOLPH TELEPHONE: (208) 345-2663 

RYAN M. FAWCETT FAX:   (208) 345-2668 

JOHN R. McDEVITT  E-MAIL: jmcdevitt@skinnerfawcett.com 

SEAN H. COSTELLO 

 

 

January 11, 2023 

 

Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 

Attention: Commissioners/Executive Director 

P.O. Box 2315 

191 5th Street West 

Ketchum, ID 83340 

 

RE: Bond Counsel Services - Financing Legal Analysis 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 

 We have been contacted in connection with a proposed affordable workforce housing project 

(the “Workforce Housing Project) to be constructed on certain real property located at the corner of 

1st Street E. and Washington Ave., Ketchum, Idaho, currently owned by the Ketchum Urban 

Renewal Agency (“KURA”).  

 

 We are prepared to furnish bond counsel services to KURA, as our client, which will include 

legal analysis of financing authority and structures for KURA to issue bonds to finance certain 

portions of the Workforce Housing Project under and pursuant to the laws of the State of Idaho. 

Our bond counsel services and costs relating to any approval, or actual issuance of bonds, will be 

determined once we know for certain the financing structure to be used and our engagement letter 

will be updated at that time. Our services will end with the closing of the Workforce Housing Project 

transaction(s). Please further note our description for services does not include preparation of any 

offering literature for any potential bonds without a separate agreement for such preparation.  

 

We will bill monthly for our services, beginning at least thirty (30) days from the date of 

KURA’s acceptance of this letter. I will be the responsible attorney for this matter. Other firm 

attorneys and tax counsel may assist me from time to time. The current hourly rates of the attorneys 

I anticipate will work on this matter are as follows: 

 

Richard A. Skinner………………… $550 per hour 

J. Ryan Boatright (Tax Counsel)……$500 per hour 

John R. McDevitt…………………..  $350 per hour 

Sean H. Costello…………………… $285 per hour 

 

 

57



Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency 

January 11, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

 We estimate our fees for the above-described services at up to $10,500 based on our regular 

hourly rates. If any now unforeseen or unusual details and/or difficulties arise during our 

engagement, additional fees may become necessary. However, any such necessary fee adjustment 

would first be discussed and confirmed with the KURA if those potential circumstances become 

evident to us.  

 

 If these arrangements appear acceptable to KURA, please have its authorized 

representative execute the acknowledgment page below and return it to me by e-mail or regular 

mail. Thank you.  

 

 We look forward to working with you on this matter. 

 

      Very truly yours, 

 

      SKINNER FAWCETT LLP 

 

 

 

      JOHN R. MCDEVITT 

 

 * * * * * 

 

 

*   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   *   * 

 

 The foregoing is hereby accepted by the Ketchum Urban Renewal Agency, Blaine 

County, Idaho, this ____ day of __________, 2023. 

 

KETCHUM URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

 

 

 

 

      By:        

       Authorized Officer 

 

58


	Top
	1.	Minutes
	KURA Minutes 12.19.22

	2.	Bills
	230117-KURA PAR

	3.	Follow-up on Board Questions
	Response to KURA Follow-up Questions

	5.	ANE Action
	1st and Washinton ANE and Resolution

	6.	Review Parking Financing Options
	Bond Financing Review

	7.	Skinner/Fawcett
	Bond Counsel Services

	Bottom

